
Meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Village of Brockport was held in the Conference 
Room, Municipal Building, 49 State Street, Brockport, New York, Monday, September 27, 2004 at 
7:00pm. 
 
PRESENT: Chair Jennifer Skoog-Harvey, Vice Chair / Member Irene Manitsas, Member John Bush, 
Member David Wagenhauser, Clerk Leslie Ann Morelli. 
 
EXCUSED:  Member Charles Switzer, Building/Zoning Officer Scott C. Zarnstorff 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Deputy Village Attorney Frank A. Aloi, DPW Superintendent Bradley B. Upson, 
Village Engineer Tom Carpenter of Chatfield Engineers, Ken Pike, Richard Miller, Robert Slocum, Ryan 
Martin, Mark Edwards, Kevin Nacy, Elliotte Bowerman (Brockport Post), Jim & Joan Hamlin, Norman 
GianCursio, Fred Montag, Fred Webster, Bob Webster, Mary Jo Nayman, Planning Board:  Scott 
Winner, John Brugger, Annette Locke, Art Appleby. 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  Chair Skoog-Harvey called the meeting to order and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
REVIEW OF MEETING MINUTES:  Chair Skoog-Harvey called for a motion to approve the minutes of 
the August 23, 2004 meeting.   
 
! Member Bush moved, Member Wagenhauser seconded, Member Manitsas abstained due to 

absence, carried to approve the minutes of the meeting held August 23, 2004 as written. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE:   None 
 
NEXT MEETING:  Monday, October 25, 2004 at 7:00pm if needed 
 
Public Hearings:  None 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
1.  Application of: Name:   Douglas VanDetta 
   Address:  26 Holley Street 
   Tax Map #:  068.60-3-23 
   Property Code: 220 
   Zoning:  Residential 
   Lot size:  .20 acre 
   Purpose:  continuance of non-conforming use as 2 family 
   Provision of Zoning Ordinance:  58-20A(1) 
 
Chair Skoog-Harvey shared that she spoke with the applicant today.  He is unable to attend the 
meeting due to recovering from surgery due to an accident.  The application will be tabled. 
 
 
2.  Application of: Name:   Lakeside Memorial Hospital 
   Address:  156 West Avenue 
   Tax Map #:  068.08-1-1 
   Property Code: 642 
   Zoning:  Business 
   Lot size:  608� x 1,300� 
   Purpose:  Area Variance to replace 12 of 70 parking spaces 

displaced by the proposed construction of a new Surgical 
Center with 9� x 20� parking spaces 

   Provision of Zoning Ordinance Appealed:  58-22 (b) (2) (b) 
 
Applicant Presentation: 
Chair Skoog-Harvey thanked Mark Edwards for returning.  She asked that he give a brief overview of 
the application for Member Manitsas� benefit since she was not in attendance at the last meeting. 
 
M. Edwards introduced himself and Chief Financial Officer Kevin Nacy.  M. Edwards summarized that 
they are requesting an area variance for 12 newly created parking spaces to be 9� x 20� instead of 10� x 
20� as required by Village code.  The existing parking lot spaces are all 9� x 20�.  This is so they can 
create the largest number of parking spaces adjacent to the new outpatient surgery building to be 
constructed and the existing laboratory.  The existing curbed meridian which people have to step, over 
and down from the parking lot to get to the lab will be replaced with this row of parking.  This will be a 
safety improvement without the meridian. 
 
Continued Board discussion on application: 
Chair Skoog-Harvey said the other new lot would have 10� x 20� parking spaces.  M. Edwards said yes.  
Chair Skoog-Harvey reminded all of the January 2003 ZBA decision that within 5 years (2008) all  
parking spaces at LMH be 10� x 20�.  These spaces would not be exempt from that long-term plan. 
 



MINUTES OF MEETING HELD September 27, 2004 continued…………………………….……page 2 
 
Members Bush and Manitsas commented that they are fine with this application.  Chair Skoog-Harvey  
said Member Wagenhauser explained at the last meeting that he will recuse himself from voting since  
there could be a perceived conflict of interest since his company does business with LMH and his  
mother sits on an LMH board. 
 
⇒  Member Manitsas moved, Member Bush seconded, Chair Skoog-Harvey in favor, Member 

Wagenhauser abstained, carried that the application for an area variance for the 12 newly created 
parking spaces to be 9� x 20� instead of 10� x 20� be approved. 

 
Member Wagenhauser wished them well on the project. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Referral of Building/Zoning Officer for an informal interpretation: 
   Name:  Grandpa Martin�s Gourmet Pickles 
   Address: 49 Clinton Street 
   Purpose: application is before Planning Board for approval of commercial 

pickle production 
 
Chair Skoog-Harvey shared that Building/Zoning Officer S. Zarnstorff made an interpretation of Village 
Code 58-11A(3) that allowed property owner of 49 Clinton Street Richard Miller and applicant Ryan 
Martin of Grandpa Martin�s Gourmet Pickles to apply to the Planning Board for locating this operation at 
that location in Business zoning.  He asks the ZBA for their informal interpretation as to whether a 
formal application to the ZBA would be necessary for a change of use. 
 
Permitted uses in the Business Use District include: 58-11A(3) Food processing when the products are 
for sale exclusively on the premises. 
 
Planning Board Applicant Presentation: 
Rich Miller introduced himself, Attorney Bob Slocum and Ryan Martin, proprietor of Grandpa Martin�s 
Gourmet Pickles, which is currently located in Ogden in a home in residential zoning.  R. Miller said he 
has had many people interested in the property with a wide variety of uses.  This applicant has the 
most reasonable use proposed � the manufacture and sales of pickles.  R. Miller shared that 49 Clinton 
Street is in business zoning.  Part is used for 4 one-bedroom residential apartments � all rented.  The 
larger part is approximately 3,000 square feet enterprise building with 600-700 square foot office space. 
He shared at the last Planning Board the many uses of the building over the years.  Some ZBA 
members remember the laundry there.  He said it has large water service, drainage and ventilation 
system. 
 
R. Miller said he would be proud to host this business in his building.  He said the Mayor, Zoning Officer 
and Economic Development Coordinator got them interested in relocating their business in Brockport. 
 
Continued Board discussion: 
Member Bush inquired as to the process of producing pickles.  R. Martin said the nubs of cucumbers 
are cut off and the cucumbers soak for one week before cut and jarred. 
 
B. Slocum said one of the questions raised in SEQR was the amount of solid waste.  R. Martin said 
there is no more than 60 pounds of solid waste for 50 bushels of cucumbers.  This is comprised of just 
the nub ends. 
 
Chair Skoog-Harvey asked the size of the business and the volume of product.  R. Martin said it is just 
he and his partner now.  He handles the manufacturing side and the partner handles the marketing and 
sales side.  When they relocate, they will need to hire 2 or 3 part time employees.  They will do 50 
bushels, which equals 500 cases twice per month.  This will be double of what they currently produce. 
 
Member Manitsas asked if there would be a lot of trucks in and out.  R. Martin said no, just their 
distributor.  Chair Skoog-Harvey asked about sales.  R. Martin said there are no plans at this point to 
open a store on site.  However, all sales will be generated from the site by phones in the office.  They 
sell and distribute to 42 stores now, including Brockport Big M.  They also go to food shows and 
festivals.  Minimal business will actually come to the building.  B. Slocum said shows and festivals are 
marketing tools to get the product noticed. 
 
Member Wagenhauser said the Village code is a bit ambiguous when it says sale exclusively on the 
premises.  He looks forward to the Code Review Committee getting rid of many of these ambiguities.  
Selling at the Apple Fest for example does not fit the statute exactly.  R. Martin explained that a 
representative would purchase the product and re-sell it at the festival.  B. Slocum said the shows and 
festivals are marketing tools vs. income generating. 
 
Deputy Village Attorney Aloi summarized that the pickles are processed on the premises, orders are 
placed on the premises, and deliveries are made from the premises.  This equals sales exclusively on 



the premises.  He recommends approving on the basis of compliance that it is a permitted use. 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD September 27, 2004 continued……………………….…………page 3 
 
F. Aloi said special marketing tools such as festivals should not affect granting approval. 
 
Jim Hamlin of 50 Park Avenue said he would like to see this business make a go of it, but he is a 
stickler for upholding the existing codes.  He said wholesaling is not allowed in the business district.  He 
feels they act as a wholesaler by selling to retailers.  He feels it requires a ZBA application.  This could 
open up the business district to any wholesaler.  He referred to the code that identifies prohibited uses 
as anything allowed in the industrial zone.  He said this would be allowed in the industrial zone. 
 
F. Aloi disagreed and said the sales deal would be made at 49 Clinton Street.  B. Slocum said 
wholesaling and processing and distribution are different things.  R. Martin said he would consider 
himself a wholesaler since he sells his pickles to retailers. 
 
Member Wagenhauser asked if a grocer calls R. Martin to say he�s low on pickles.  R. Martin said yes, 
or we check in with them and ask the status of the stock.  Member Wagenhauser asked if the grocer 
pays for the pickles when he gets them or if the pickles are on consignment.  R. Martin said the grocer 
buys from them up front and puts them on their shelves. 
 
Jim Hamlin said he learned they can be ordered through a website that links to NY Deli on Buffalo 
Road.  Member Wagenhauser said when the Uniform Commercial Code was written there was no 
internet.  He feels the sale would be at Clinton Street.  R. Martin said the deli takes care of internet 
sales by hosting through their website.  They buy the products from us, so the original sale would occur 
from Clinton Street.  F. Aloi who does the billing.  R. Martin said he does from the shop.  F. Aloi said if 
you can make a case for the sales taking place at Clinton Street, they are okay. 
 
 Member Wagenhauser said as the festival representative would consider a re-seller a grocer. 
Member Wagenhauser commented that Java Junction and Jimmy Z's sell at the Farmer's market.
Where is the sale occurring on those? Member Wagenhauser said there is no distinction made in 
 the code between wholesale and retail.
 
 
Chair Skoog-Harvey said it sounds like the board is comfortable not requiring a formal application since 
it is a permitted use per code. 
 
→ Member Wagenhauser moved, Member Bush seconded, unanimously carried that no formal 
application is necessary since it is a permitted use per Village code. 
 
Member Bush commented that even if a formal application had come before the ZBA, it would have 
had the same result.  R. Miller thanked the ZBA and said this clears the way for them to proceed with 
the Planning Board.  Chair Skoog-Harvey said the Planning Board would address SEQR. 
 
Adjournment: 
! Member Manitsas moved, Member Wagenhauser seconded, unanimously carried that the meeting 

be adjourned at 7:45pm. 
 

__________________________ 
Leslie Ann Morelli, Village Clerk 

 


